
            
 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 

Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Roslyn Buckner                   Councilman Bob Best 
Councilman Billy Bain               Councilman Jaime Petralanda 
 
Decorum: “Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the City Council, shall be barred 
from further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the 
majority vote of the City Council members present.  In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, 
personal attacks and comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments from the podium.” 
 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, May 23, 2016 – 7:00 p.m. 

City Hall, Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
 
2. Invocation: Councilman Bain 

 
Salute to the Flag: Students from All Angels will lead the audience in the Pledge of 

Allegiance and Salute to the Flag  
 
3. Awards & Presentations:  
 
 A) Recognizing Wrestling Coach Dave Ryan of Miami Springs Senior High for 33 
Years of Service to the school 
 
 B) Recognizing long-time Miami Springs resident Joe Buonassi on his 90th Birthday 
 
 C) Yard of the Month for June 2016 – Jan Badura – 589 Deer Run  
 
 D) Presentation on the First Tee Program by Paul O’Dell  
 
4. Open Forum: Persons wishing to speak on items of general city business, please sign the 
register located on the speaker's stand before the meeting begins. 

 
5. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) May 9, 2016 – Regular Meeting  

 
6. Reports from Boards & Commissions: None 
  
7. Public Hearings: None. 
  
8. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted):  
  
 A) Recommendation by Public Works that Council approve an increase to the City’s 
current open Purchase Order #160507 with Waterfront Property Services d/b/a Gator Dredging, 
in an amount not to exceed $71,557.85, for North Esplande Canal Bank restoration which 



exceeds the originally budgeted amount of $224,857.50.  Funds have been provided by the State 
of Florida, Department of Environmental Protection, Division of Water Restoration Assistant 
Grant on a coat reimbursement basis pursuant to Section 31.11 (E)(6)(g) of the City Code 
 
 B) Recommendation by Public Works that Council authorize the issuance of a 
Purchase Order to Distreebutors, Inc., utilizing Miami-Dade County contract #1298-1/21 
(attached), in an amount not to exceed $7,590.00, for the purchase, delivery and installation of 
various trees throughout the City as funds were budgeted in the FY 15/16 Budget pursuant to 
Section 31.11(E)(5) of the City Code 
 
9. Old Business:  
 

A) Appointments to Advisory Boards by the Mayor and Council Members 
 
B) Recommendation by Administration to schedule a Council Workshop or Special 

Meeting to discuss the potential Floor Area Ratio (F.A.R.) revision process 
 

10. New Business:   
 
 A) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council waive the competitive bid 
process and approve an expenditure to C.R. DeLongchamp, in the amount of $19,584.00, for 
building rental as these funds qualify for expenditure from the Police Law Enforcement Trust 
Fund, pursuant to Section 31.11(E)(6)(g) of the City Code and pursuant to the contract renewal 
option provided by the City’s existing contract/contract vendor for an additional twelve-month 
period 
 
 B) Recommendation by Finance that Council award City RFP # 01-15/16 to HG 
Construction Development & Investment, Inc., the lowest responsible bidder and authorize the 
execution of a contract, in the amount of $589,788.00, for Retrofitting Sidewalks for ADA 
Compliance as funds will come from the State of Florida Department of Transportation LAP 
agreement previously approved by Council on February 8th, 2016  
 
 C) Approval of a Resolution re-confirming the City's intention to seek annexation and 
requesting Miami-Dade County to consider the City's previously filed request and application 
documentation for annexation 
 
 D) Request that Council approve a Site Plan for the construction of a 69,538 sq. ft., 
120-room hotel, located at 665 Mokena Drive 
 
 E) Request that Council approve a Site Plan for the construction of a 90,080 sq. ft., 
149-room hotel, located at 4949 N.W. 36th Street  
 
 F) Discussion of revised request for abandonment of La Villa Drive and vacation of 
alley between Minola and La Villa Drive adjacent to N.W. 36th Street 
 
11. Other Business: None 
 
12. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 



B) City Manager 
 
C) City Council 

 
13. Adjourn 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please visit www.miamisprings-fl.gov for current meeting schedule or follow us on             Twitter @MIAMISPRINGSFL 
******************************************************************************************************* 
Live streaming video of this meeting is available at http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/webcast. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
Anyone wishing to obtain a copy of an agenda item may contact the City Clerk at (305) 805-5006, download the complete agenda packet from www.miamisprings-

fl.gov or view the materials at City Hall during regular business hours. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

Pursuant to Florida Statute 286.0114, the City Council provides the public with a reasonable opportunity to be heard on all matters. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

If any person decides to appeal any decision of this Board with respect to any matter considered, s/he will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose 
may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is made (F. S. 

286.0105), all of which the City does not provide. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate in this proceeding should contact the City Clerk, 
201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 33166.  Telephone: (305) 805-5006, no later than seven (7) days prior to the proceeding. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
Pursuant to Sec. 2-11.1 (S) of the Miami-Dade County Code and Miami Springs Code of Ordinances Chapter 33 - §33-20, all persons, firms or corporations 
employed or retained by a principal who seeks to encourage the passage, defeat, or modifications of (1) ordinance, resolution, action or decision of the City 

Council; (2) any action, decision, recommendation of any City Board or Committee; or (3) any action, decision or recommendation of City personnel during the time 
period of the entire decision-making process on such action, decision or recommendation which will be heard or reviewed by the City Council, or a City Board or 
Committee shall register with the City before engaging in any lobbying activities on forms prepared for this purpose and shall state under oath his or her name, 

business address, the name and business address of each person or entity which has employed said registrant to lobby, and the specific issue on which he or she 
has been employed to lobby.  A copy of the lobbyist registration form is available from the Office of the City Clerk. 

******************************************************************************************************* 

http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/webcast
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/


 

CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION 
 

Presented to 

 

Jan Badura 
 

Of 
 

589 Deer Run 
 

for her home being designated as 

 

“YARD OF THE MONTH” 
June 2016 

 

Presented this 23rd day of May, 2016. 

 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 

                              Zavier M. Garcia 

                                     Mayor 
ATTEST: 

                     

Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 

                 City Clerk  



 
 1 

 
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Monday, May 9, 2016 7:00 p.m. 
Council Chambers at City Hall 

201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 7:10 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
 
Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Billy Bain 
Councilman Bob Best  
Councilman Jaime A. Petralanda 
Councilwoman Roslyn Buckner  
 
City Manager Ronald K. Gorland 
Assistant City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso 
City Attorney Jan K. Seiden 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
Chief Armando Guzman 
Recreation Director Omar Luna 
Public Works Director Tom Nash 
 
2. Invocation: Offered by Councilman Best 
 

Salute to the Flag: Students from AIE Charter School lead the audience in the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Salute to the Flag 

 
3. Awards & Presentations:  
 
  A) Recognizing Miami Springs Senior High School’s Band and Color Guard for 
their recent win at the Percussion Scholastic AA Championship in Jupiter, Florida 
 
Mayor Garcia presented the Miami Springs Senior High School Band and Color 
Guard and their instructors with certificates recognizing their win at the 
championship recently. 
 
 B) Recognizing long-time Miami Springs resident Merle Roe on her 97th 
Birthday 
 
Mayor Garcia presented Ms. Roe with a certificate of recognition and a box of 
chocolates in celebration of her 97th birthday. 
 



 
 2 

 C) Aquatic Center construction update by Jorge Ferrer, Bermello & Ajamil 
 
Jorge Ferrer, of B&A Architects, updated the Council with the latest Aquatic Facility 
construction report.  He stated that the project is on schedule and has a ribbon 
cutting ceremony scheduled for July 1st and a grand opening to the public on July 
2nd.     
 
4. Open Forum:  The following members of the public addressed the City Council:  
Elaine Martin, 120 Sunset Way, Keni Wilson, 973 Hunting Lodge Drive, and Joe Buonassi, 
1131 Swan Avenue. 

 
5. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) April 25, 2016 – Regular Meeting 

 
Councilman Best moved to approve the minutes.  Councilman Petralanda seconded 
the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Buckner, Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor 
Garcia voting Yes.  

 
6. Reports from Boards & Commissions: None at this time.  

 
7. Public Hearings: None at this time. 
 
8. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted) 
  
 A) Approval of the City Attorney’s Invoice for April 2016 in the Amount of 
$13,034.25 
 
 B) Recommendation by Public Works that Council authorize the issuance of a 
Purchase Order to Distreebutors, Inc., utilizing Miami Dade County contract #1298-1/21 
(attached), in an amount not to exceed $43,215.00, for the purchase, delivery and 
installation of various trees throughout the City as funds were budgeted in the FY15/16 
Budget pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(5) of the City Code 
 
The City Manager read the items by title for the record. 
 
Councilman Bain moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Councilman Petralanda 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Buckner, Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes.  
 
9. Old Business:  
 
 A) Appointments/Re-appointments to Advisory Boards by the Mayor and Council 
Members 
 
No appointments were made at this time. 
 
10. New Business:  
 
 



 
 3 

 A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs 
Appointing William Alonso  City Manager Of The City Of Miami Springs; Establishing 
Conditions Of Employment, Salary And Benefits; Effective Date 
 
City Attorney Jan Seiden read the Resolution by title. 
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the Resolution.  Councilman Bain seconded the 
motion, which carried 4-1 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Buckner, Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, and Mayor Garcia voting Yes; 
Councilman Petralanda voting No. 
 
 B) Discussion on Aquatic Facility Marketing Price List  
 
Omar Luna, Recreation Director, addressed the City Council and explained that the 
fee sheets have been provided to explain the aquatic facility rental options and 
prices.  He explained to Council that since this is a new facility it is difficult to 
determine the correct pricing at this time, but feels that this is a start and if 
adjustments need to be made he will come before Council with revised prices. He 
stated that the fees reflected in the marketing fee sheets are also the fees in the 
Resolution for the Council’s consideration. 
 
 C) Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs 
Amending The Current Schedule Of Charges For The Use Of City Recreation Facilities 
And Related Services; Effective Date 
 
City Attorney Jan Seiden read the Resolution by title. 
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the Resolution.  Councilman Bain seconded the 
motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Buckner, Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor 
Garcia voting Yes.  
 
 D) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council approve an 
expenditure in the amount of $2,940.00 to Kimmons Builders, Inc., the lowest responsible 
quote after obtaining three written quotes (attached), for remodeling of the Police 
Department Squad Room, as these funds were approved in the General Fund Balance 
Designations List Line #15 for Projected FY15/16 pursuant to Section §31.11 (C)(2) of the 
City Code 
 
The City Manager read the recommendation by title for the record. 
 
Councilman Bain moved to approve the recommendation.  Councilman Petralanda 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Buckner, Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes.  
 
 E) Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an expenditure in an amount 
not to exceed $7,312.00, to Atlas Door & Gate, Inc., the lowest responsible quote after 
obtaining three written quotes (attached), for roll down doors  to secure the fertilizer 
storage as these funds were approved in the General Fund Balance Designations List #7 



 
 4 

for FY15/16 pursuant to Section 31.11 (E)(5) of the City Code 
 
The City Manager read the recommendation by title for the record. 
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the recommendation.  Councilman Petralanda 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Buckner, Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes.  
 
 F) Discussion on Mr. Vincent Beltran’s Alley Stormwater and Paving Request 
 
Tom Nash, Public Works Director, provided a slide show presentation on the alley 
issue.   
 
He explained that he had cleaned out one of the storm drains near Mr. Beltran’s 
property and it helped with some of the flooding in the alley way.  He stated that he 
has spoken to Mr. Beltran several times in the past on ways of improving his 
property to avoid the water build up.  The City Council requested that Staff inventory 
which alley ways have asphalt or not.  They also requested looking into a Special 
Tax District and to getting prices for the cleaning out of the drainage in the alley way 
in question. 
 
 G) Optimist Club Request for contribution to fundraiser for the MSVG Soccer 
Program 
 
Tony Silva, on behalf of the Optimist Club, addressed the Council. 
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the request from the Optimist Club for $500.00.  
Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The 
vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Buckner, Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, 
Councilman Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes.  
 
 H) River Cities Festival Request for Additional Funding for FY2016 Festival 
 
Tom Curtis, Executive Director of the River Cities Festival Committee, addressed the 
City Council.  
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the Tom Curtis’ request that the City absorb the 
cost of the Public Works fees in the amount of $6,196.00.  The motion died due to 
lack of a second. 
 
Discussion ensued and there was no further action taken on the item.  
 
 I) Request by CMI for Funding for the Curtiss Mansion Parking Lot  
 
Richard Wheeler, President of CMI, addressed the City Council. 
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the City’s commitment to fund the balance 
required to complete the construction of the parking lot until City issues the RFP 
documents.  Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll 



 
 5 

call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Buckner, Councilman Best, 
Councilman Bain, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes.  
 
 J) Recommendation by Finance that Council approve an increase to the City's 
current open purchase order with Southeast Design Associates, Inc., in an amount not to 
exceed $5,400.00, for Civil Engineering Services to complete Geometric dimensioning 
required for the Westward Drive Bike Path Project which exceeds the originally budgeted 
amount of $7,800.00 for the completion of the plans in the FY15/16 Budget pursuant to 
Section §31.11 (E)(6)(g) of the City Code  
  
City Manager Gorland read the recommendation by title. 
 
Councilman Bain moved to approve the recommendation.  Councilman Best 
seconded the motion, which carried 4-1 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor Garcia 
voting Yes; Vice Mayor Buckner voting No. 
 
11.  Other Business:  
 
 A) 2nd Quarter Budget Status Report 
  
Assistant City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso stated that the second 
quarter budget status report is based on revenues received and appropriations 
expended through March 31, 2016.  The purpose of the report is to apprise the City’s 
governing body of the FY 2015-2016 budgetary status and projected year-end 
revenues, expenditures, and fund balances.  
 
At the end of the second quarter of FY2016, the City is within budgeted revenues and 
expenditures and the Administration is not projecting any significant 
increase/decrease to the fund balance at the end of the fiscal year.  The revenues 
and expenditures as of the end of the second quarter of FY2015-2016 are within 
budgeted amounts and in line with the amounts reported for the same period of last 
fiscal year. 
 
There were no questions or discussion regarding this item.   
 

 12. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney  
 
City Attorney Seiden had no report at this time. 
 

B) City Manager 
 
City Manager Gorland reminded the City Council about the ribbon cutting ceremony for the  
Prince Field Playground “Tot Lot” is Friday, May 20th at 5:30 p.m. 
 
 



 
 6 

 
C) City Council 

 
Councilman Petralanda had no report at this time. 
 
Vice Mayor Buckner inquired about the waterslide at the aquatic facility. 
 
Councilman Best had no report at this time 
 
Councilman Bain had no report at this time. 
 
Mayor Garcia had no report at this time. 
 
 
13. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 10:40 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
This 23

rd
 day of May, 2016. 

 
 
           
Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 
 
 
 

 















    

 
 
 

 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166-5259 
Phone: 305.805.5006 
Fax: 305.805.5028 

 

 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Garcia and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM:  Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, City Clerk  
 
DATE:  May 5, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: PENDING BOARD APPOINTMENTS 
 
************************************************************************************************************************************** 
The following appointments are pending: 

 NEW               ORIGINAL   LAST 
APPOINTMENT CURRENT  TERM  APPOINTMENT      APPOINTMENT 
COUNCILMEMBER  MEMBER     EXPIRES     DATE           DATE        
 
Board of Adjustment/Zoning and Planning Board   
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Juan Molina  04-30-2018 01-29-2015 11-09-2015 
Councilman Best   Bob Calvert  04-30-2018 01-28-2013 11-09-2015 
Bain Vice Mayor   Ernie Aloma  04-30-2019 04-13-2009 01-11-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  Martin Marquez  04-30-2019 01-11-2010 05-14-2012 
Councilman Petralanda  Manuel Pérez-Vichot 04-30-2017 12-14-1998 11-09-2015 
Mayor Garcia   Alejandro Gonzalez 10-31-2018 12-03-2015 12-03-2015  
 
Architectural Review Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Marc Scavuzzo*  10-31-2016  08-27-2012 11-09-2015 
Councilman Best   Valentine Soler  10-31-2016  01-14-2013 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Joe Valencia*  10-31-2016  02-27-2012 11-09-2015 
Councilwoman Buckner  Fredy Albiza*  10-31-2016  08-27-2012 11-09-2015 
Councilman Petralanda  Ana Paula Ibarra * 10-31-2016  10-10-2011 11-09-2015 
 
Code Enforcement Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Jorge Filgueira*  11-30-2017  08-27-2012 11-09-2015 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Walter Dworak  09-30-2016  11-14-2005 09-14-2010 
Councilman Best   Marlene B. Jiménez 09-30-2018  03-02-2005 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   John Bankston  09-30-2017  09-23-2002 11-09-2015  
Councilman Bain   Rhonda Calvert  09-30-2017  09-25-2006 11-09-2015  
Councilwoman Buckner Jacqueline Martinez Regueira 09-30-2018  06-09-2003 11-09-2015   
Councilman Petralanda  Robert (Bob) Williams 09-30-2016  03-10-2008 10-25-2010 
 
Code Review Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  VACANT  04-30-2018   
Councilman Best   Maria (Nuñez) Garrett 04-30-2017 05-08-2009 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Arthur Freyre  04-30-2017 05-19-2009 05-09-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  Maria Fernandez  04-30-2019 08-11-2003 05-24-2010 
Councilman Petralanda  Jana Armstrong  04-30-2019 06-11-2001 05-10-2010 
 
Disability Advisory Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  VACANT  12-31-2016  
Councilman Best   Catherine Stadnik 12-31-2016 12-14-1998 02-14-2011 
Vice Mayor Bain   Grace Bain  12-31-2016 01-13-2014 01-13-2014 
Councilwoman Buckner  Richard Barnes  12-31-2016 05-11-2009 01-24-2011 
Councilman Petralanda  Thomas W. Cannon 12-31-2016   
 
 



 
Ecology Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Wendy Anderson Booher*04-30-2018 01-12-2009 11-09-2015  
Councilman Best   Trina Aguila  04-30-2018 10-28-2013 11-09-2015   
Vice Mayor Bain   Carl Malek*  04-30-2017 11-22-2010 05-09-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  James Steele  04-30-2019 09-09-2013 09-09-2013 
Councilman Petralanda  Michael Kobiakov 04-30-2019 08-12-2013 08-12-2013 
 
Education Advisory Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Alyssa C. Roelans 05-31-2017 02-17-2015 11-09-2015  
Councilman Best   Constantino Hernandez 05-31-2017 04-27-2015 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Dr. Mara Zapata* 05-31-2017 06-13-2011 11-09-2015  
Councilwoman Buckner  Ilia Molina   05-31-2017 02-05-2015 11-09-2015  
Councilman Petralanda   Dan Bradley  05-31-2017 05-13-2013 11-09-2015 
 
Golf and Country Club Advisory Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Michael Domínguez* 07-31-2017 04-12-2010 11-09-2015  
Councilman Best   Mark Safreed  07-31-2017 08-08-2005 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   George Heider  07-31-2017 08-13-2001 11-09-2015 
Councilwoman Buckner  Ken Amendola*  07-31-2017 10-10-2011 11-09-2015 
Councilman Petralanda  Art Rabade  07-31-2017 03-11-2013 11-09-2015 
 
Historic Preservation Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Sydney Garton  01-31-2019 11-08-1993 02-08-2010 
Councilman Best   Charles M. Hill  02-28-2018 03-08-2004 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Yvonne Shonberger 02-28-2017 06-13-2005 09-10-2012 
Councilwoman Buckner  Dr. James Watson 02-28-2018 06-09-2014 11-09-2015 
Councilman Petralanda  Jo Ellen Phillips  01-31-2019 2-14-2013 08-26-2013 
 
Board of Parks & Parkways 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Eric Richey  04-30-2018 02-13-1989 11-09-2015 
Councilman Best   Tammy K. Johnston 04-30-2018 04-27-2006 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Lynne V. Brooks* 04-30-2018 08-08-2011 11-09-2015 
Councilwoman Buckner  Irene Priess  04-30-2017 08-13-2001 04-25-2011 
Councilman Petralanda  Lee Fisher  04-30-2017 03-23-2015 03-23-2015   
 
Recreation Commission 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  E. Jorge Santin  04-30-2019 04-14-2008 12-13-2010 
Councilman Best   Mark A. Johnston 04-30-2018 04-22-2013 04-22-2013 
Vice Mayor Bain   Dr. Stephanie Kondy 04-30-2017 06-13-2005 09-10-2012 
Councilwoman Buckner   Miguel Becerra  04-30-2017 09-09-2015 09-09-2015 
Councilman Petralanda  Alexander Anthony 04-30-2019 08-12-2013 08-12-2013 
 
 * Architectural Review Board 
  Ecology Board - Council confirmation required per §32.40  
  Education Advisory Board - Council confirmation required per §32.99 (A) 
  Board of Parks and Parkways – Council confirmation required per §32.30  
   
  “No Board/Commission member who shall have served three consecutive terms of office shall be eligible to serve 

an additional term of office for two years thereafter, unless the appointment for any additional term shall be 
confirmed by a majority of the City Council.” 

 























Page | 2 
 

guests who then take elevators to the actual lobby on the second floor with 
reception and check in. 
 
As noted, the second floor contains the lobby, meeting room, fitness area, 
breakfast area, food preparation and service, a business center, and offices for 
hotel employees, as well as a terrace and swimming pool.   
 
Floors three through eight are typical floors, with 20 rooms per floor, a mix of 
double queen, king, king suite, and accessible rooms. 
 
The building is of CBS construction, with bands of windows at the front of the 
building, and individual windows elsewhere. A stucco parapet at the roofline is of 
sufficient height to screen all rooftop equipment.  
 
However, the building as submitted is unfinished and lacks detail and style.  New 
architectural drawings are being worked on, and will be reviewed and approved 
by staff at that time. 
 
ANALYSIS:  The proposed hotel would replace an old two story warehouse built 
in 1950. In its place would be an eight story, 69,538  square foot hotel with 120 
guest rooms, more fully realizing the parcel’s potential, adding a new hotel to the 
City’s inventory, while enhancing the NW 36 Street corridor specifically, and the 
City generally. 
 
In addition, the hotel would provide numerous short term construction jobs, long 
term hotel jobs, and benefit other hotel service providers.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the request for site plan approval 
be granted, subject to the following condition. 
 
 

1. Plans shall substantially comply with those submitted, as follows: 
 

 Survey, by Pulice Land Surveyors, Inc. dated May 7, 2015 
 Sheet A.01, Architectural Site Plan, by Israel Bigelman Architect, 

signed, sealed on March 23, 2016 and dated March 21, 2016. 
 Sheet A.02, First Floor Plan, by Israel Bigelman Architect, signed, 

sealed on March 23, 2016 and dated March 21, 2016. 
 Sheet A.03, Second Floor Plan, by Israel Bigelman Architect signed, 

sealed on March 23, 2016 and dated March 21, 2016. 
 Sheet A.04, Third & Fourth Floor, by Israel Bigelman Architect, signed, 

sealed on March 23, 2016 and dated March 21, 2016. 
 Sheet A.05, Typical Floor Plan, by Israel Bigelman Architect, signed, 

sealed on March 23, 2016 and dated March 21, 2016. 
 Sheet A.06, Roof Plan, by Israel Bigelman Architect, signed, sealed on 

March 23, 2016 and dated March 21, 2016. 



















































 

Zoning and Planning Board  Monday, April 4, 2016 

 

City of Miami Springs, Florida 
 
The Zoning and Planning Board met in Regular Session on Monday, April 4, 
2016 in the Council Chambers at City Hall following the Board of Adjustment 
meeting. 
 
 
1.  CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:52 p.m. 
 
Present were:  Chairman Manuel Pérez-Vichot  

 Vice Chair Ernie Aloma 
Bill Tallman 

 Juan Molina  
Alejandro Gonzalez 

      
Absent:   Bob Calvert 
 
Also Present:   Councilwoman Roslyn Buckner 

City Attorney Jan K. Seiden 
    Planning and Zoning Director Chris Heid  
                                Board Secretary Juan D. Garcia 
 
 
2) APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING:  

 
Minutes of the January 4, 2015 meeting were approved as written. 
 
Board member Tallman moved to approve the minutes as written.  Board 
member Molina seconded the motion, which passed unanimously on voice 
vote. 
 
 
3) SWEARING IN OFF ALL WITNESS AND ZONING AND PLANNING 

DIRECTOR 
 
Board Secretary Garcia swore in the Zoning and Planning Director, the 
applicants or representatives of the applicants who would testify should the 
Board have any questions. 
 
 
 
 



 

Zoning and Planning Board  Monday, April 4, 2016 

 
4) NEW BUSINESS 
 

A) CASE # 02-ZP-16 
SUCRE, LLC 
4949 N.W. 36 STREET 
ZONING: NW 36 
LOT SIZE: 151,059 SQ. FT.  
 

Applicant is requesting the vacation of certain rights-of-way. 
                          

Zoning and Planning Director Heid read his recommendation to the Board. In his 
recommendation, Zoning and Planning Director Heid noted that this item had 
been approved by the Board of Adjustment in August with the condition of using 
a Unity of Title. This item is back in front of the Board because the applicant is 
requesting to use a Covenant-in-Lieu of the Unity of Title. 
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot mentioned that the difference with the Unity of Title and the 
Covenant is that in a Unity of Title you are unifying all the parcels of land into one 
title. In a Covenant-in-Lieu of Unity of Title the property owner is able sell or 
finance separate components of the project. 
 
City Attorney Seiden explained that a Unity of Title was originally agreed upon by 
the applicant when they first came in front of the Board, but since then have 
decided not to go forth with this condition. The applicant has decided to appear 
again in front of the Board of Adjustment in hope of an approval of the vacation of 
rights-of-way with the condition of a Covenant-in-Lieu of a Unity of Title. 
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot noted that there are signs on the Valero Gas Station side of 
the property that the Fire Department put up that read “Do Not Enter”. He asked 
if there would be an issue with the Fire Department and alley vacation. City 
Attorney Seiden responded by reminding the Board that another condition that 
was already agreed upon at the previous meeting is that the applicant would 
contact all the proper agencies (FDOT, Miami-Dade Fire Rescue, etc.) to notify 
them of the project if it was to be approved.  
 
Santiago Echemendia, of the law firm of Shutts and Bowen, was present to 
represent the property owner and to answer any questions from the Board. Mr. 
Echemendia handed out a packet to the Board members, the City Attorney and 
Zoning and Planning Director Heid. Mr. Echemendia then proceeded to go 
through each document that was included in the packet. Mr. Echemendia 
explained to the Board that a Covenant-in-Lieu has been successfully utilized for 
over thirty years and has achieved its intended goal of fully recognizing the 
zoning site plan of a parcel of land and permitting additional financing options, 
such as sale, mortgaging, grants, etc., which would have run afoul of the terms of 
a Unity of Title. He then read the eight proposed conditions of approval that were 
recommended by Zoning and Planning Director Heid, with the second condition 
changed from Unity of Title to a Covenant.  
 
Vice Chair Aloma voiced his concern with a statement that Mr. Echemendia 
made regarding why the applicant has chosen to revise their request. He wanted 
to know why the applicant didn’t bring up the Covenant-in-Lieu of a Unity of Title 
when this project was first introduced to the Board seven months ago. He added 



 

Zoning and Planning Board  Monday, April 4, 2016 

that this could have saved them a lot of time and it could have been addressed 
prior to this meeting.  
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot asked the City Attorney to clarify what the Board will be 
voting on. City Attorney Seiden explained that the applicant is back in front of the 
Board with a revised request to vacate the alley and the abandonment of the 
street just as before, but in this case based upon the condition of using a 
Covenant-in-Lieu of Unity of Title. 
 
At this time Chair Pérez-Vichot invited any member of the audience to speak. 
Eric Davendorf, 617 La Villa Drive, addressed the Board notifying them of his 
concerns for the vacation of the alley. Mr. Davendorf mentioned that he uses the 
alley to drive his trailer, which he loads with his motorcycle and Jet Ski, out of his 
property. He added that it is a large trailer and it would be difficult to load it any 
other way. 
 
City Attorney Seiden let Mr. Davendorf know that there were still many steps in 
this process. He added that nothing had been done yet and advised Mr. 
Davendorf to voice his concerns to the City Council if this item is brought before 
them. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the process that will take place after the Board 
votes on this item. 
 
Board member Tallman commented that he had an issue with all the information 
that was brought by the applicant before the Board at the last minute without any 
chance to review it prior to meeting. He added that because this information is 
new, he feels pressed to make a responsible recommendation on whether to 
move forward with a Covenant-in-Lieu of Unity of Title. 
 
Vice Chair Aloma made a motion to deny the vacation of the alley and 
abandonment of the street with the condition of using a Covenant-in-Lieu 
of Unity of title. Board member Tallman seconded the motion which failed 
2-3 by roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Chair Aloma, Board 
member Tallman voting Yes; Board member Molina, Board member 
Gonzalez, and Chair Pérez-Vichot voting No. 
 
Board member Gonzalez made a motion to approve the vacation of the 
alley and abandonment of the street as proposed by the applicant, with the 
use of a Covenant-in-Lieu of Unity of Title so long it is tied to a specific site 
plan, as well as the other eight conditions proposed. Board member Molina 
seconded the motion which passed 3-2 by roll call vote. The vote was as 
follows: Board member Molina, Board member Gonzalez, and Chair Pérez-
Vichot voting Yes; Board member Tallman and Vice Chair Aloma voting No. 
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot notified the applicant’s representatives that the Board of 
Adjustments only makes recommendations to the City Council. This item will be 
heard at a City Council meeting for their final approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Zoning and Planning Board  Monday, April 4, 2016 

B) CASE # 03-ZP-16 
SUCRE, LLC 
4949 N.W. 36 STREET 
ZONING: NW 36  
LOT SIZE: 151,059 SQ. FT.  
 

Applicant is requesting site plan approval for the construction of a 90,080 square 
foot, 149 room hotel. 
 
Zoning and Planning Director Heid read his recommendation to the Board. 
 
Emmanuel Ortiz of Delant Construction Co. was present to speak to the Board 
about the proposed site plan. Mr. Ortiz informed the Board that he is the architect 
for the project. He then went through the layout of the hotel, describing the plans 
to the Board. Mr. Ortiz added that the Hotel will be a Wyndham Garden and it will 
feature a variety of green spaces as indicated on the plans. On the top floor there 
would be a bar/lounge area that will be called “The Pilot House”. Plans are to 
preserve the original neon sign that is on the top of the vacant bar and display it 
in the new hotel. This was done to honor the City’s aviation history, and was 
done so because the hotel will be located where the bar once was. Mr. Ortiz also 
mentioned that he took all of Zoning and Planning Director Heid into 
consideration and tried to integrate all of them into the plans. 
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot asked if there was any further discussion or any questions 
from the audience and there were neither. 
 
Board member Molina moved to approve the site plan as long as it met the 
six conditions requested in the Staff Recommendation that was read by the 
Zoning and Planning Director. Board Member Gonzalez seconded the 
motion, which passed unanimously on voice vote. 
 
City Attorney Seiden notified the applicant’s representatives that the Board of 
Adjustments only makes recommendations to the City Council. This item will be 
heard at a City Council meeting for their final approval. 

 
 

C) CASE # 04-ZP-16 
665 MOKENA PARTNERS, LLC/ STEVE MARIN 
3449 N.W. 42 AVENUE 
ZONING: ABRAHAM TRACT DISTRICT 
LOT SIZE: 80,242 SQ. FT.  

 
Applicant is seeking site plan approval to construct a hotel. 
 
Zoning and Planning Director Heid read his recommendation to the Board.  
 
Steve Marin, 665 Mokena Drive, presented the site plan for the proposed 
Comfort Suite Hotel. Mr. Marin mentioned that the hotel will be very similar to the 
three other hotels that 665 Mokena Partners, LLC has developed in the City. The 
hotel will have 8 floors, 120 rooms and approximately 70,000 square feet. Mr. 
Marin informed the Board that he has been working with Zoning and Planning 
Director Heid and has included the majority of his suggestions into the project. 
 



 

Zoning and Planning Board  Monday, April 4, 2016 

Board member Tallman moved to approve the site plan, subject to the 
seven conditions that were read in the Zoning and Planning Director’s 
recommendation. Vice Chair Aloma seconded the motion, which passed 
unanimously on voice vote.  
 
City Attorney Seiden notified the applicant that the Board of Adjustments only 
makes recommendations to the City Council. This item will be heard at a City 
Council meeting for their final approval. 
 
 
5) ADJOURN 
 
There was no further business to discuss and meeting was duly adjourned at 
8:13 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
                                                           
Juan D. Garcia                                                                        
Board Secretary                                                                          
 
 
Adopted by the Board on                                                         
this       day of             , 2016.                                                  
 
 
                                                      
Manny Perez-Vichot, Chair 
 
 
Words -stricken through- have been deleted.  Underscored words represent 
changes. All other words remain unchanged. 
 
*************************************************************************************************************** 
 “The comments, discussions, recommendations and proposed actions of City Citizen 
Advisory Boards do not constitute the policy, position, or prospective action of the City, 
which may only be established and authorized by an appropriate vote or other action of 
the City Council”. 
*************************************************************************************************************** 

 



































































 

Zoning and Planning Board  Monday, April 4, 2016 

 

City of Miami Springs, Florida 
 
The Zoning and Planning Board met in Regular Session on Monday, April 4, 
2016 in the Council Chambers at City Hall following the Board of Adjustment 
meeting. 
 
 
1.  CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:52 p.m. 
 
Present were:  Chairman Manuel Pérez-Vichot  

 Vice Chair Ernie Aloma 
Bill Tallman 

 Juan Molina  
Alejandro Gonzalez 

      
Absent:   Bob Calvert 
 
Also Present:   Councilwoman Roslyn Buckner 

City Attorney Jan K. Seiden 
    Planning and Zoning Director Chris Heid  
                                Board Secretary Juan D. Garcia 
 
 
2) APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING:  

 
Minutes of the January 4, 2015 meeting were approved as written. 
 
Board member Tallman moved to approve the minutes as written.  Board 
member Molina seconded the motion, which passed unanimously on voice 
vote. 
 
 
3) SWEARING IN OFF ALL WITNESS AND ZONING AND PLANNING 

DIRECTOR 
 
Board Secretary Garcia swore in the Zoning and Planning Director, the 
applicants or representatives of the applicants who would testify should the 
Board have any questions. 
 
 
 
 



 

Zoning and Planning Board  Monday, April 4, 2016 

 
4) NEW BUSINESS 
 

A) CASE # 02-ZP-16 
SUCRE, LLC 
4949 N.W. 36 STREET 
ZONING: NW 36 
LOT SIZE: 151,059 SQ. FT.  
 

Applicant is requesting the vacation of certain rights-of-way. 
                          

Zoning and Planning Director Heid read his recommendation to the Board. In his 
recommendation, Zoning and Planning Director Heid noted that this item had 
been approved by the Board of Adjustment in August with the condition of using 
a Unity of Title. This item is back in front of the Board because the applicant is 
requesting to use a Covenant-in-Lieu of the Unity of Title. 
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot mentioned that the difference with the Unity of Title and the 
Covenant is that in a Unity of Title you are unifying all the parcels of land into one 
title. In a Covenant-in-Lieu of Unity of Title the property owner is able sell or 
finance separate components of the project. 
 
City Attorney Seiden explained that a Unity of Title was originally agreed upon by 
the applicant when they first came in front of the Board, but since then have 
decided not to go forth with this condition. The applicant has decided to appear 
again in front of the Board of Adjustment in hope of an approval of the vacation of 
rights-of-way with the condition of a Covenant-in-Lieu of a Unity of Title. 
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot noted that there are signs on the Valero Gas Station side of 
the property that the Fire Department put up that read “Do Not Enter”. He asked 
if there would be an issue with the Fire Department and alley vacation. City 
Attorney Seiden responded by reminding the Board that another condition that 
was already agreed upon at the previous meeting is that the applicant would 
contact all the proper agencies (FDOT, Miami-Dade Fire Rescue, etc.) to notify 
them of the project if it was to be approved.  
 
Santiago Echemendia, of the law firm of Shutts and Bowen, was present to 
represent the property owner and to answer any questions from the Board. Mr. 
Echemendia handed out a packet to the Board members, the City Attorney and 
Zoning and Planning Director Heid. Mr. Echemendia then proceeded to go 
through each document that was included in the packet. Mr. Echemendia 
explained to the Board that a Covenant-in-Lieu has been successfully utilized for 
over thirty years and has achieved its intended goal of fully recognizing the 
zoning site plan of a parcel of land and permitting additional financing options, 
such as sale, mortgaging, grants, etc., which would have run afoul of the terms of 
a Unity of Title. He then read the eight proposed conditions of approval that were 
recommended by Zoning and Planning Director Heid, with the second condition 
changed from Unity of Title to a Covenant.  
 
Vice Chair Aloma voiced his concern with a statement that Mr. Echemendia 
made regarding why the applicant has chosen to revise their request. He wanted 
to know why the applicant didn’t bring up the Covenant-in-Lieu of a Unity of Title 
when this project was first introduced to the Board seven months ago. He added 



 

Zoning and Planning Board  Monday, April 4, 2016 

that this could have saved them a lot of time and it could have been addressed 
prior to this meeting.  
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot asked the City Attorney to clarify what the Board will be 
voting on. City Attorney Seiden explained that the applicant is back in front of the 
Board with a revised request to vacate the alley and the abandonment of the 
street just as before, but in this case based upon the condition of using a 
Covenant-in-Lieu of Unity of Title. 
 
At this time Chair Pérez-Vichot invited any member of the audience to speak. 
Eric Davendorf, 617 La Villa Drive, addressed the Board notifying them of his 
concerns for the vacation of the alley. Mr. Davendorf mentioned that he uses the 
alley to drive his trailer, which he loads with his motorcycle and Jet Ski, out of his 
property. He added that it is a large trailer and it would be difficult to load it any 
other way. 
 
City Attorney Seiden let Mr. Davendorf know that there were still many steps in 
this process. He added that nothing had been done yet and advised Mr. 
Davendorf to voice his concerns to the City Council if this item is brought before 
them. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the process that will take place after the Board 
votes on this item. 
 
Board member Tallman commented that he had an issue with all the information 
that was brought by the applicant before the Board at the last minute without any 
chance to review it prior to meeting. He added that because this information is 
new, he feels pressed to make a responsible recommendation on whether to 
move forward with a Covenant-in-Lieu of Unity of Title. 
 
Vice Chair Aloma made a motion to deny the vacation of the alley and 
abandonment of the street with the condition of using a Covenant-in-Lieu 
of Unity of title. Board member Tallman seconded the motion which failed 
2-3 by roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Chair Aloma, Board 
member Tallman voting Yes; Board member Molina, Board member 
Gonzalez, and Chair Pérez-Vichot voting No. 
 
Board member Gonzalez made a motion to approve the vacation of the 
alley and abandonment of the street as proposed by the applicant, with the 
use of a Covenant-in-Lieu of Unity of Title so long it is tied to a specific site 
plan, as well as the other eight conditions proposed. Board member Molina 
seconded the motion which passed 3-2 by roll call vote. The vote was as 
follows: Board member Molina, Board member Gonzalez, and Chair Pérez-
Vichot voting Yes; Board member Tallman and Vice Chair Aloma voting No. 
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot notified the applicant’s representatives that the Board of 
Adjustments only makes recommendations to the City Council. This item will be 
heard at a City Council meeting for their final approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Zoning and Planning Board  Monday, April 4, 2016 

B) CASE # 03-ZP-16 
SUCRE, LLC 
4949 N.W. 36 STREET 
ZONING: NW 36  
LOT SIZE: 151,059 SQ. FT.  
 

Applicant is requesting site plan approval for the construction of a 90,080 square 
foot, 149 room hotel. 
 
Zoning and Planning Director Heid read his recommendation to the Board. 
 
Emmanuel Ortiz of Delant Construction Co. was present to speak to the Board 
about the proposed site plan. Mr. Ortiz informed the Board that he is the architect 
for the project. He then went through the layout of the hotel, describing the plans 
to the Board. Mr. Ortiz added that the Hotel will be a Wyndham Garden and it will 
feature a variety of green spaces as indicated on the plans. On the top floor there 
would be a bar/lounge area that will be called “The Pilot House”. Plans are to 
preserve the original neon sign that is on the top of the vacant bar and display it 
in the new hotel. This was done to honor the City’s aviation history, and was 
done so because the hotel will be located where the bar once was. Mr. Ortiz also 
mentioned that he took all of Zoning and Planning Director Heid into 
consideration and tried to integrate all of them into the plans. 
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot asked if there was any further discussion or any questions 
from the audience and there were neither. 
 
Board member Molina moved to approve the site plan as long as it met the 
six conditions requested in the Staff Recommendation that was read by the 
Zoning and Planning Director. Board Member Gonzalez seconded the 
motion, which passed unanimously on voice vote. 
 
City Attorney Seiden notified the applicant’s representatives that the Board of 
Adjustments only makes recommendations to the City Council. This item will be 
heard at a City Council meeting for their final approval. 

 
 

C) CASE # 04-ZP-16 
665 MOKENA PARTNERS, LLC/ STEVE MARIN 
3449 N.W. 42 AVENUE 
ZONING: ABRAHAM TRACT DISTRICT 
LOT SIZE: 80,242 SQ. FT.  

 
Applicant is seeking site plan approval to construct a hotel. 
 
Zoning and Planning Director Heid read his recommendation to the Board.  
 
Steve Marin, 665 Mokena Drive, presented the site plan for the proposed 
Comfort Suite Hotel. Mr. Marin mentioned that the hotel will be very similar to the 
three other hotels that 665 Mokena Partners, LLC has developed in the City. The 
hotel will have 8 floors, 120 rooms and approximately 70,000 square feet. Mr. 
Marin informed the Board that he has been working with Zoning and Planning 
Director Heid and has included the majority of his suggestions into the project. 
 



 

Zoning and Planning Board  Monday, April 4, 2016 

Board member Tallman moved to approve the site plan, subject to the 
seven conditions that were read in the Zoning and Planning Director’s 
recommendation. Vice Chair Aloma seconded the motion, which passed 
unanimously on voice vote.  
 
City Attorney Seiden notified the applicant that the Board of Adjustments only 
makes recommendations to the City Council. This item will be heard at a City 
Council meeting for their final approval. 
 
 
5) ADJOURN 
 
There was no further business to discuss and meeting was duly adjourned at 
8:13 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
                                                           
Juan D. Garcia                                                                        
Board Secretary                                                                          
 
 
Adopted by the Board on                                                         
this       day of             , 2016.                                                  
 
 
                                                      
Manny Perez-Vichot, Chair 
 
 
Words -stricken through- have been deleted.  Underscored words represent 
changes. All other words remain unchanged. 
 
*************************************************************************************************************** 
 “The comments, discussions, recommendations and proposed actions of City Citizen 
Advisory Boards do not constitute the policy, position, or prospective action of the City, 
which may only be established and authorized by an appropriate vote or other action of 
the City Council”. 
*************************************************************************************************************** 

 







Page | 1 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

       MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Mayor & Council 
 
FROM: Christopher Heid, City Planner 
 
DATE: May  23, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Application for street abandonment and alley vacation 
 
CASE # 02-ZP-16   
 
APPLICANT: Sucre, LLC 
 
ADDRESS:  4949 NW 36 Street   
 
REQUEST:  Applicant is requesting the abandonment of a portion of a City-
owned street (La Villa Drive) 20,731 square feet in size, and the vacation of a 
portion of an alley, 4,284 square feet in size.  
 
THE PROPERTY:  The property is 13 separate parcels separated by a City-
owned alley, and a City-owned street, La Villa Drive.  The western and central 
parcels are identical, rectangular in shape, with 142 feet of frontage on NW 36 
Street, and a depth of 346 square feet.  Each parcel contains 48,990 square feet.   
 
La Villa Drive runs between the two parcels.  It is a 60 foot wide street with a 
depth of 346 feet, for a total size of 20,732 square feet.   
 
The eastern parcel is also rectangular in shape, with a width of 190 feet of 
frontage on Mineola Drive, and a depth of 142 feet, for a total lot size of 26,980 
square feet.  It abuts a 16 foot wide alley, at the rear (west).    
 
This alley, running between the central and eastern parcels is 16 feet wide and 
345 feet in depth, containing 5,367 square feet would be abandoned as well. 
 
In total, the rights-of-way to be abandoned measure 26,099 square feet, or 0.599 
acres.  
 

201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL  33166-5289 

Phone: (305) 805-5030 
Fax: (305) 805-5036 

 



Page | 2 
 

However, when rights-of-way are abandoned, half of the property goes to each 
adjacent private property owner. As such, the portion of La Villa Drive to be 
abandoned would go completely to the applicant, as they are the property 
owners on both sides of the Street.  Similarly, the northern portion of the alley to 
the west of the eastern parcel would go completely to the applicant, as they are 
the owners on both sides of the street. However, on the south portion of the alley, 
the west half would go to the applicant, while the east half would go to the 
adjacent private property owner.  
 
In summary, the thirteen private parcels contain a total of 124,960 square feet, or 
2.86 acres.  The street and alley to be abandoned is a total of 26,099 square 
feet, or 0.599 acres.  The total lot size, after abandonment, would be 151,059 
square feet, or 3.46 acres. 
 
ANALYSIS:  La Villa Drive has been closed to through traffic for years by a metal 
guardrail and landscaping to prevent cut through traffic into the residential 
neighborhood. Many of the other streets in the area have similar treatment.    
Therefore, there would be no impact on traffic flow on La Villa Drive, and little 
impact – other than trash collection- in the alley. And with the construction of a 
wall along the north property line, the adjacent residential areas will be better 
protected from the commercial activity on NW 36 Street.  
 
The most difficult aspects of redevelopment in the NW 36 Street District are the 
small, shallow lots under multiple ownership. The City is willing to vacate the 
rights-of-way in order to establish what is an unusually large parcel in the City.  
However, the fundamental condition that the City requires is the recordation of a 
unity of title or covenant in lieu of unity of title that secures the multiple parcels 
into a single development site under single ownership, which can only be 
separated by the City Council. 
 
HISTORY: This request received a favorable recommendation from the Zoning & 
Planning Board on April 4, 2016 by a vote of 3-2. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the request for street 
abandonment and alley vacation be approved, subject to the following conditions:  
 

1. Any utilities currently located within the abandoned street and vacated 
alley must be relocated at the applicant’s expense, in a location and 
manner to be approved by the City. 

 
2. A six foot high CBS wall shall be constructed along the north property line. 

 
3. A Covenant-Lieu-of Unity of Title shall be executed in substantially similar 

form as that as submitted as part of the record. The Covenant-Lieu-of 
Unity of Title shall be recorded by the applicant with the Miami-Dade 
County Clerk’s Office. 
 



Page | 3 
 

4. Approval for the vacations must be obtained from Miami-Dade County and 
the Florida Department of Transportation, and Miami Dade Fire 
Department, as applicable. 
 

5. An Opinion of Title must be submitted for the review and approval of the 
City. 
 

6. A cross-access, cross-parking agreement shall be submitted for all 
common areas of the unified site plan, in a form and manner to be 
approved by the City. 
 

7. A property owner’s association shall be created among all owners that is 
responsible for upkeep and maintenance of all common areas in a form 
and manner to be approved by the City. 

 
8. Applicant must agree to a unified development that utilizes the full 

development site in a manner consistent with the site plan entitled “Miami 
Springs Development-Overall Site Plan” and “Miami Springs Development 
Overall Site Plan- Roof View, prepared by EOF Designs and dated March 
31, 2016.  Any substantial deviation from the site plan must be approved 
by the City Council at a public hearing.  Minor deviations from the site plan 
may be addressed administratively. What constitutes substantial and 
minor deviations is at the sole discretion of the City. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ZPB4949NW36stROWvacation 
5/12/2016 



















































 

Zoning and Planning Board  Monday, April 4, 2016 

 

City of Miami Springs, Florida 
 
The Zoning and Planning Board met in Regular Session on Monday, April 4, 
2016 in the Council Chambers at City Hall following the Board of Adjustment 
meeting. 
 
 
1.  CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:52 p.m. 
 
Present were:  Chairman Manuel Pérez-Vichot  

 Vice Chair Ernie Aloma 
Bill Tallman 

 Juan Molina  
Alejandro Gonzalez 

      
Absent:   Bob Calvert 
 
Also Present:   Councilwoman Roslyn Buckner 

City Attorney Jan K. Seiden 
    Planning and Zoning Director Chris Heid  
                                Board Secretary Juan D. Garcia 
 
 
2) APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING:  

 
Minutes of the January 4, 2015 meeting were approved as written. 
 
Board member Tallman moved to approve the minutes as written.  Board 
member Molina seconded the motion, which passed unanimously on voice 
vote. 
 
 
3) SWEARING IN OFF ALL WITNESS AND ZONING AND PLANNING 

DIRECTOR 
 
Board Secretary Garcia swore in the Zoning and Planning Director, the 
applicants or representatives of the applicants who would testify should the 
Board have any questions. 
 
 
 
 



 

Zoning and Planning Board  Monday, April 4, 2016 

 
4) NEW BUSINESS 
 

A) CASE # 02-ZP-16 
SUCRE, LLC 
4949 N.W. 36 STREET 
ZONING: NW 36 
LOT SIZE: 151,059 SQ. FT.  
 

Applicant is requesting the vacation of certain rights-of-way. 
                          

Zoning and Planning Director Heid read his recommendation to the Board. In his 
recommendation, Zoning and Planning Director Heid noted that this item had 
been approved by the Board of Adjustment in August with the condition of using 
a Unity of Title. This item is back in front of the Board because the applicant is 
requesting to use a Covenant-in-Lieu of the Unity of Title. 
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot mentioned that the difference with the Unity of Title and the 
Covenant is that in a Unity of Title you are unifying all the parcels of land into one 
title. In a Covenant-in-Lieu of Unity of Title the property owner is able sell or 
finance separate components of the project. 
 
City Attorney Seiden explained that a Unity of Title was originally agreed upon by 
the applicant when they first came in front of the Board, but since then have 
decided not to go forth with this condition. The applicant has decided to appear 
again in front of the Board of Adjustment in hope of an approval of the vacation of 
rights-of-way with the condition of a Covenant-in-Lieu of a Unity of Title. 
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot noted that there are signs on the Valero Gas Station side of 
the property that the Fire Department put up that read “Do Not Enter”. He asked 
if there would be an issue with the Fire Department and alley vacation. City 
Attorney Seiden responded by reminding the Board that another condition that 
was already agreed upon at the previous meeting is that the applicant would 
contact all the proper agencies (FDOT, Miami-Dade Fire Rescue, etc.) to notify 
them of the project if it was to be approved.  
 
Santiago Echemendia, of the law firm of Shutts and Bowen, was present to 
represent the property owner and to answer any questions from the Board. Mr. 
Echemendia handed out a packet to the Board members, the City Attorney and 
Zoning and Planning Director Heid. Mr. Echemendia then proceeded to go 
through each document that was included in the packet. Mr. Echemendia 
explained to the Board that a Covenant-in-Lieu has been successfully utilized for 
over thirty years and has achieved its intended goal of fully recognizing the 
zoning site plan of a parcel of land and permitting additional financing options, 
such as sale, mortgaging, grants, etc., which would have run afoul of the terms of 
a Unity of Title. He then read the eight proposed conditions of approval that were 
recommended by Zoning and Planning Director Heid, with the second condition 
changed from Unity of Title to a Covenant.  
 
Vice Chair Aloma voiced his concern with a statement that Mr. Echemendia 
made regarding why the applicant has chosen to revise their request. He wanted 
to know why the applicant didn’t bring up the Covenant-in-Lieu of a Unity of Title 
when this project was first introduced to the Board seven months ago. He added 



 

Zoning and Planning Board  Monday, April 4, 2016 

that this could have saved them a lot of time and it could have been addressed 
prior to this meeting.  
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot asked the City Attorney to clarify what the Board will be 
voting on. City Attorney Seiden explained that the applicant is back in front of the 
Board with a revised request to vacate the alley and the abandonment of the 
street just as before, but in this case based upon the condition of using a 
Covenant-in-Lieu of Unity of Title. 
 
At this time Chair Pérez-Vichot invited any member of the audience to speak. 
Eric Davendorf, 617 La Villa Drive, addressed the Board notifying them of his 
concerns for the vacation of the alley. Mr. Davendorf mentioned that he uses the 
alley to drive his trailer, which he loads with his motorcycle and Jet Ski, out of his 
property. He added that it is a large trailer and it would be difficult to load it any 
other way. 
 
City Attorney Seiden let Mr. Davendorf know that there were still many steps in 
this process. He added that nothing had been done yet and advised Mr. 
Davendorf to voice his concerns to the City Council if this item is brought before 
them. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the process that will take place after the Board 
votes on this item. 
 
Board member Tallman commented that he had an issue with all the information 
that was brought by the applicant before the Board at the last minute without any 
chance to review it prior to meeting. He added that because this information is 
new, he feels pressed to make a responsible recommendation on whether to 
move forward with a Covenant-in-Lieu of Unity of Title. 
 
Vice Chair Aloma made a motion to deny the vacation of the alley and 
abandonment of the street with the condition of using a Covenant-in-Lieu 
of Unity of title. Board member Tallman seconded the motion which failed 
2-3 by roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Chair Aloma, Board 
member Tallman voting Yes; Board member Molina, Board member 
Gonzalez, and Chair Pérez-Vichot voting No. 
 
Board member Gonzalez made a motion to approve the vacation of the 
alley and abandonment of the street as proposed by the applicant, with the 
use of a Covenant-in-Lieu of Unity of Title so long it is tied to a specific site 
plan, as well as the other eight conditions proposed. Board member Molina 
seconded the motion which passed 3-2 by roll call vote. The vote was as 
follows: Board member Molina, Board member Gonzalez, and Chair Pérez-
Vichot voting Yes; Board member Tallman and Vice Chair Aloma voting No. 
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot notified the applicant’s representatives that the Board of 
Adjustments only makes recommendations to the City Council. This item will be 
heard at a City Council meeting for their final approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Zoning and Planning Board  Monday, April 4, 2016 

B) CASE # 03-ZP-16 
SUCRE, LLC 
4949 N.W. 36 STREET 
ZONING: NW 36  
LOT SIZE: 151,059 SQ. FT.  
 

Applicant is requesting site plan approval for the construction of a 90,080 square 
foot, 149 room hotel. 
 
Zoning and Planning Director Heid read his recommendation to the Board. 
 
Emmanuel Ortiz of Delant Construction Co. was present to speak to the Board 
about the proposed site plan. Mr. Ortiz informed the Board that he is the architect 
for the project. He then went through the layout of the hotel, describing the plans 
to the Board. Mr. Ortiz added that the Hotel will be a Wyndham Garden and it will 
feature a variety of green spaces as indicated on the plans. On the top floor there 
would be a bar/lounge area that will be called “The Pilot House”. Plans are to 
preserve the original neon sign that is on the top of the vacant bar and display it 
in the new hotel. This was done to honor the City’s aviation history, and was 
done so because the hotel will be located where the bar once was. Mr. Ortiz also 
mentioned that he took all of Zoning and Planning Director Heid into 
consideration and tried to integrate all of them into the plans. 
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot asked if there was any further discussion or any questions 
from the audience and there were neither. 
 
Board member Molina moved to approve the site plan as long as it met the 
six conditions requested in the Staff Recommendation that was read by the 
Zoning and Planning Director. Board Member Gonzalez seconded the 
motion, which passed unanimously on voice vote. 
 
City Attorney Seiden notified the applicant’s representatives that the Board of 
Adjustments only makes recommendations to the City Council. This item will be 
heard at a City Council meeting for their final approval. 

 
 

C) CASE # 04-ZP-16 
665 MOKENA PARTNERS, LLC/ STEVE MARIN 
3449 N.W. 42 AVENUE 
ZONING: ABRAHAM TRACT DISTRICT 
LOT SIZE: 80,242 SQ. FT.  

 
Applicant is seeking site plan approval to construct a hotel. 
 
Zoning and Planning Director Heid read his recommendation to the Board.  
 
Steve Marin, 665 Mokena Drive, presented the site plan for the proposed 
Comfort Suite Hotel. Mr. Marin mentioned that the hotel will be very similar to the 
three other hotels that 665 Mokena Partners, LLC has developed in the City. The 
hotel will have 8 floors, 120 rooms and approximately 70,000 square feet. Mr. 
Marin informed the Board that he has been working with Zoning and Planning 
Director Heid and has included the majority of his suggestions into the project. 
 



 

Zoning and Planning Board  Monday, April 4, 2016 

Board member Tallman moved to approve the site plan, subject to the 
seven conditions that were read in the Zoning and Planning Director’s 
recommendation. Vice Chair Aloma seconded the motion, which passed 
unanimously on voice vote.  
 
City Attorney Seiden notified the applicant that the Board of Adjustments only 
makes recommendations to the City Council. This item will be heard at a City 
Council meeting for their final approval. 
 
 
5) ADJOURN 
 
There was no further business to discuss and meeting was duly adjourned at 
8:13 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
                                                           
Juan D. Garcia                                                                        
Board Secretary                                                                          
 
 
Adopted by the Board on                                                         
this       day of             , 2016.                                                  
 
 
                                                      
Manny Perez-Vichot, Chair 
 
 
Words -stricken through- have been deleted.  Underscored words represent 
changes. All other words remain unchanged. 
 
*************************************************************************************************************** 
 “The comments, discussions, recommendations and proposed actions of City Citizen 
Advisory Boards do not constitute the policy, position, or prospective action of the City, 
which may only be established and authorized by an appropriate vote or other action of 
the City Council”. 
*************************************************************************************************************** 

 


	Agenda Summary - May 23, 2016
	Agenda Summary p. 2
	Agenda Summary p. 3

	3C Yard of the Month - June 2016
	5A Minutes - May 9, 2016
	8A PO Approval for Canal Restoration - Gator Dredging
	8B PO Approval for City-wide Tree Planting 
	9A Advisory Board Appointments
	10A Approval of Lease Agreement for CPO Office
	10B RFP Award to HG Co nstruction for ADA Sidewalks
	10C Resolution - Annexation Application 
	10D Approval of Site Plan for 665 Mokena Drive 
	10E Approval of Site Plan for 4949 NW 36th Street 
	10F Abandonment of La Villa Drive and Vacation of Alley 

